Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

3-6-2012

Citizens Against Range Expansion v. Idaho Fish and Game Dept Appellant's Brief Dckt. 39297

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Statement of the Case

The Idaho Department of Fish and Game and Director Moore (collectively "IDFG") hereby appeal the district court's denial of their June 9, 2010 post-judgment motion to partially lift an injunction in a nuisance action that had closed the historic Farragut Shooting Range. The injunction required IDFG to make certain safety improvements to reopen the Range for up to 500 shooters per year, and to make additional safety improvements and noise abatement measures to open the Range to over 500 shooters per year.

IDFG based its motion on improvements made to a portion of the Range to comply with the injunction's stated condition to reopen the Range for up to 500 shooters per year. IDFG also based its motion on additional improvements made to comply with the injunction's more stringent conditions to reopen the Range for more than 500 shooters, and on post-judgment action by the Idaho Legislature to adopt noise and other standards for state outdoor sport shooting ranges. The district court summarily denied IDFG's request to reopen the Range for more than 500 shooters, concluding the statutory standards for state outdoor sport shooting ranges violated the Idaho Constitution's prohibition on certain types of "special legislation" and separation of judicial and legislative powers. As a result of this denial, the district court did not address the specific merits of IDFG's compliance with safety measures to exceed 500 shooters.

The district court concluded IDFG had complied with a reasonable interpretation of the safety requirement to lift the injunction for up to 500 shooters; nevertheless, it denied IDFG's motion to reopen the Range to up to 500 shooters after concluding IDFG should install certain

additional features to address safety issues "implicit" in the Judgment or "overlooked" by the parties and the court in the pre-Judgment proceedings.

B. Statement of Facts

The Farragut Shooting Range, near the unincorporated town of Bayview in Kootenai County, has been used as a shooting range since the U.S. Navy established it as part of the World War II Farragut Naval Training Center in 1942. AR 82, 234. IDFG acquired ownership of the Range after the War (*id.*), and use of the Range continued at levels that were disputed in these proceedings. In 2007, the Range had a berm behind the target area (also called a backstop) (*see Exh.* PPP), but did not have any safety baffles or side berms. *See* AR 239, Find. of Fact ¶22.

After the district court enjoined operation of the Range because of safety and noise concerns, IDFG chose not to appeal the Judgment, and proceeded to make Range improvements to comply with the terms of the injunction. IDFG renovated a portion of the Range for a 100-yard shooting area, with shooting only allowed from 12 designated shooting positions in a 6' by 72' area covered by a three-sided shooting shed. AR 947, Find. of Fact ¶10-11; Exh. MMM, NNN, PPP. To meet the condition to reopen this area for up to 500 shooters, IDFG installed safety baffles to cover each of the 12 shooting positions to prevent shooters (from prone to standing) from firing their weapons above the shooting area's back berm. *See* AR 949, Find. of Fact ¶23. To meet the conditions to reopen this portion of the Range to more than 500 shooters per year, IDFG installed a series of overhead and side baffles, side berms, and a shooting shed (*see* AR 948-49 Find. of Fact ¶13-23, Exh. PPP) to prevent a shooter from seeing "Blue Sky" downrange to prevent bullet escapement from the property owned and controlled by IDFG.

IDFG took these and other measures to meet and surpass the injunction's safety conditions, and to comply with noise and other standards adopted by the Idaho Legislature in 2008 in the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Act, applicable to the Range.

C. Course of Proceedings

This action began on August 22, 2005, when Plaintiffs Citizens against Range Expansion *et al.* ("CARE") filed a complaint asserting nuisance and other causes of action and seeking injunctive and other relief regarding IDFG's operation of the Range. AR 14-33. CARE alleged a substantial change in Range use and sought to enjoin IDFG's continued use of the Range and implementation of a proposed Master Plan for renovating the Range. *See* AR 47-63.

Following discovery, summary judgment proceedings, and a trial December 11-14, 2006, the district court issued a Memorandum Decision, Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order on February 23, 2007 (AR 220-279) and a Judgment on March 2, 2007 (AR 280-283). In its 2007 Memorandum Decision, the district court determined the Range was, "[e]xcept for the fact that the existing range contains no baffle," relatively safe for what the court concluded was the annual use in 2002, based on incomplete usage records, of "perhaps up to 250 shooters" AR 265-66, Concl. of Law ¶7. The district court also determined that Range operations for up to 500 shooters per year were "not likely to be a nuisance." AR 266-67, Concl. of Law ¶7. Nevertheless, the district court concluded the current operation of the Range allowed bullet escapement beyond agency-controlled boundaries "into the Surface Danger Zone encompassing plaintiffs' private property and Farragut State Park property open to members of the public, constitut[ing] a clear and present danger to the safety and health of plaintiffs and other persons in

the area." AR 265, Concl. of Law ¶6; see AR 247, Find. of Fact ¶¶36-40; see also Exh. 2 at 2, 9 (fig. 2); Exh. 32 (depicting Surface Danger Zone for the unbaffled Farragut Range).

In its Judgment, the district court granted injunctive relief requiring IDFG to close the Farragut Shooting Range "until a baffle is installed over every firing position." AR 281; see also AR 278. The district court required that the baffle "be placed and be of sufficient size that the shooter, in any position (standing, kneeling, prone), cannot fire his or her weapon above the berm behind the target." AR 281; see also AR 278. The sufficiency of baffles was to be established by agreement of the parties. AR 281. Absent agreement, the district court stated it would decide whether the baffles IDFG installed were sufficient to prevent the firing of weapons above the berm by viewing the premises itself. AR 281; see also AR 278. The district court ruled that "at such time as baffles are installed over every firing position and approved in the manner set forth, [IDFG] may operate the Farragut Shooting Range in the same manner in which it historically has (i.e., without any onsite supervision) for up to 500 shooters per year." AR 281-82; see also AR 278.

The district court concluded that if IDFG wished to exceed 500 shooters per year it must make further improvements "that will address safety and noise considerations." AR 267, Concl. of Law ¶7. The district court established two additional conditions for opening the Range to more than 500 shooters per year: "safety measures adequate to prevent bullet escapement beyond the boundaries owned and controlled by [IDFG]" and "noise abatement measures to reduce noise to a decibel level agreed upon by the parties in the first instance, or, if the parties are unable to agree, to be set by the Court following further evidence." AR 282; see also AR 278-79. To

exceed 500 shooters per year, the district court specified in its February 23, 2007 Order that "[t]he first concern (safety) can be satisfied only by the 'No Blue Sky' rule, or 'totally baffled . . . so that a round cannot escape[,]' as espoused by the nation's preeminent authority on range design and designer of the Vargas Master Plan, Clark Vargas." AR 278-79.

On June 9, 2010, IDFG filed a Motion for Partial Lifting of Injunction. AR 293-297. In its Motion, IDFG sought to open the renovated 100-yard shooting area for up to 500 shooters, based on compliance with the Judgment's condition to install a baffle over every shooting position. AR 294. IDFG also sought to open the 100-yard shooting area for more than 500 shooters, based on additional safety improvements that complied with either the "No Blue Sky Rule" or the baffle criteria espoused by Clark Vargas in Exh. 2 (with IDFG contending it met both the "No Blue Sky Rule" and Vargas criteria), and based on reliance on noise standards of the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act, Idaho Code § 67-9101 *et seq.*, enacted in 2008 to regulate state outdoor sport shooting ranges such as the Farragut Range. AR 294-95; *see* AR 906.

The district court held a status conference on August 30, 2010 (TR8-34) and issued a Scheduling Order on September 17, 2010, establishing a schedule for discovery and additional briefing for summary disposition of the matter, and providing for an evidentiary hearing if needed. See AR 8, 841. On December 28, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a Motion for Summary Judgment asserting that Idaho Code § 67-9102 is unconstitutional. See AR 9; AR 865-66. Because the parties disagreed regarding compliance with the district court's condition to reopen

the Range for up to 500 shooters annually, IDFG filed a separate Motion for Court View to ensure compliance with the terms of the Judgment. AR 808-10; *see also* AR 295.

Following summary disposition proceedings, the district court issued an interlocutory Memorandum Decision and Order on March 11, 2011. AR 835-911. The district court determined it was appropriate to consider a partial reopening of the range for the 100-yard shooting area. See AR 908; see also AR 954 Concl. of Law ¶5. The district court decided, however, any court view of the premises was not appropriate and denied IDFG's Motion for Court View, determining that "[a]ny future action which contemplated a view of the premises by the Court will have to be accomplished by trial." AR 856-59, 910. Thus, the district court modified sua sponte its 2007 Judgment, which had conditioned lifting of the injunction for up to 500 shooters on a court view of the premises if the parties could not agree that the Judgment's requirements for baffling of shooting positions had been met. AR 910; see AR 281. The district court also concluded the noise standards of the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act violated the "special law" prohibition of art. III § 19 and the separation of powers requirement of art. V § 13 of the Idaho Constitution. AR 910. The district court also concluded that issues of material fact remained in dispute as to range safety, both to allow IDFG to open the Range up to 500 shooters per year and to expand beyond 500 shooters per year. AR 910-11. However, "due solely to the finding that the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act is unconstitutional, due to failure to address noise considerations alone," the district court denied IDFG's motion to partially lift the injunction to open the Range for more than 500 shooters per year. AR 910-11.

The district court set a hearing to begin on June 13, 2011, limited to the taking of evidence on safety considerations for up to 500 shooters. AR 911; see also AR 953, Concl. of Law ¶1.

IDFG filed a motion for permission to appeal the district court's decision regarding the constitutionality of the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act on March 25, 2011. AR 927. On April 20, 2011, the district court denied this motion. AR 912-19, 927. This Court denied IDFG's motion for permission to appeal on May 26, 2011. AR 11, 927-28.

The district court conducted an evidentiary hearing on June 13-14, 2011. AR 928. On August 25, 2011, the district court denied IDFG's Motion for Partial Lifting of Injunction without further modifying its February 23, 2007 Order. AR 957. The district court found IDFG had installed baffles over all 12 shooting positions in the 100-yard shooting area sufficient to prevent shooters (prone to standing) from "directly" firing above the berm behind the target. AR 949, Find. of Fact ¶23. The district court also found that IDFG had installed a series of six overhead baffles over each shooting position, as well as additional side baffles, side berms, and other improvements. AR 947-49, Find. of Fact ¶13-23. However, the district court stated that its condition to prevent shooters from firing "above the berm behind the target" should be interpreted to encompass ricochets resulting from shooters firing "at, below, or in directions to the side of or away from the berm behind the target." AR 955, Concl. of Law ¶6.

The district court found that its prohibition on "firing" above the berm should be interpreted to include ricochets "[b]ecause the subject of ricochets were [sic] not discussed at the 2006 trial" and because the court interpreted the word "round," which was excluded from the Judgment but used in the underlying Order, to prohibit the firing of "a round above the berm," to

include "ricochets." AR 955, Concl. of Law ¶6; see also AR 985-986. The district court found the 100-yard shooting area violated the safety considerations it set forth in 2007 and that partial lifting of the injunction "should occur" after IDFG implemented "simple and relatively inexpensive" measures the court identified to contain ricochets: ground baffles in conjunction with overhead baffles and an eyebrow berm or bullet catcher near the top of the back berm to reduce ground ricochets caused by striking the floor of the range. AR 957, Concl. of Law ¶12.

On August 29, 2011, the district court awarded CARE its costs. *See* AR 973. CARE subsequently applied for attorney's fees (*see* AR 970), and IDFG objected and moved to disallow fees and costs (*see id.*). On November 14, 2011, the district court rescinded its award of costs and granted IDFG's motion to disallow fees and costs. AR 970-88. In support of this decision, the district court found IDFG had not acted unreasonably by not making safety improvements that were "implicit" in the 2007 Order, and by not addressing issues, including ricochets, that the district court concluded had been "overlooked" by the district court and the parties at the time of the granting of injunctive relief. AR 985-86.

II. ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

- 1. Did the district court err in finding a noise standard adopted by the Idaho Legislature for state outdoor sport shooting ranges to constitute legislative infringement on judicial power and a "special law" prohibited by the Idaho Constitution?
- 2. Did the district court err in interpreting its injunction for reopening the Farragut Shooting Range to 500 shooters per year so as to impose new conditions not specified in the original injunction?

III. ARGUMENT

The district court erred by: (1) finding legislatively adopted noise standards for outdoor state sport shooting ranges to be legislative infringement on judicial power and special legislation prohibited by the Idaho Constitution; and (2) interpreting the condition to reopen the Range to 500 shooters per year in a manner at odds with the requirements of I.R.C.P. 65(d) and 60(b).

A. The district court erred in concluding noise and other standards adopted by the Idaho Legislature for state outdoor sport shooting ranges are unconstitutional.

The district court erred in denying IDFG's Motion to Partially Lift Injunction as it related to reopening the Range to more than 500 shooters per year by determining the 2008 Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act, which established noise and other standards for state outdoor sport shooting ranges, is unconstitutional. The district court erred by concluding that the Act violates the separation of powers doctrine and Idaho Constitution's prohibition against certain enumerated classes of "special" legislation.

1. Standard of Review

This Court exercises free review of a statute's constitutionality. *Idaho Schools For Equal Educational Opportunity v. State*, 140 Idaho 586, 590, 97 P.3d 453, 457 (2004) ("*ISEEO IV*") (citation omitted). The statute must be "unconstitutional as a whole, without any valid application." *Id.* (quotation omitted). "[E]very presumption is in favor of the constitutionality of the statute, and the burden of establishing the unconstitutionality of a statutory provision rests upon the challenger." *Id.* (quotation omitted).

2. The district court's determination that enactment of the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act deprives judicial power or jurisdiction in violation of art. V § 13 of the Idaho Constitution is at odds with established precedent.

In its 2007 Memorandum Decision and Order, the district court recognized that noise standards are a proper subject of legislative power. It reviewed state and local noise standards that might apply to shooting ranges, and found that Idaho did not have applicable statewide noise standards. AR 243. In its Judgment, the district court did not establish a noise standard for Range operations in fashioning prospective equitable relief, leaving that to future negotiation between the parties or post-judgment evidentiary hearing. AR 282; *see also* AR 278-79, 867-69.

In 2008, the Idaho Legislature enacted the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act, Idaho Code § 67-9101 *et seq.*, which established prospective statewide noise standards for state outdoor sport shooting ranges and preempted local ordinances purporting to regulate the use and operation of such ranges. There is no dispute that Farragut and other state-owned shooting ranges are subject to the Act's requirements.

In reviewing this legislative action in its March 11, 2011 decision, the district court stated that the litigation over the Farragut Range had identified a need for a noise standard stemming from the proposed expansion of the Farragut Range (AR 902), and noted that nothing in its 2007 Order prohibited IDFG from seeking legislative enactment of a noise standard (AR 869). In this regard, the district court's order is consistent with well-settled doctrine regarding the separation of power between the judicial and legislative branches.

Nonetheless, the district court concluded the Idaho Legislature's enactment of the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act constitutes an unconstitutional deprivation of judicial power "rightly pertain[ing]" to the judicial department under art. V § 13 of the Idaho Constitution. In reaching this conclusion, the district court cited only the case of *ISEEO IV*, 140 Idaho 586, 97 P.3d 453, stating it has "similarities" with the present case. AR 903-4.

According to the district court, "[w]hile IDFG did not ask the Idaho Legislature to rewrite the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure (as the Idaho Supreme Court found the legislature did in *ISSEO* [sic] *IV*), nothing in Article V, § 13 requires so egregious an act." AR 904. In analyzing art. V § 13, however, the district court failed to specify what power rightly pertaining to the judiciary was deprived by passage of the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act.

The district court's conclusion is a significant and unwarranted expansion of the holding of *ISEEO IV*. The *ISEEO IV* decision addressed legislation purporting to establish procedures for suits alleging failure of the Legislature's constitutional duty to establish a "uniform and thorough system of public, free, common schools," and requiring dismissal of any then-pending suit against the State if such procedures were not followed. *ISEEO IV*, 140 Idaho 586, 97 P.3d 453. The Court found such legislative action to violate the art. III § 19 prohibition on enactment of special laws "[r]egulating the practice of the courts of justice," since it was "designed only to affect one particular lawsuit" and "purports to make decisions regarding this litigation that only the district court can make." *ISEEO IV*, 140 Idaho at 592-93, 97 P.3d at 459-60. The Court went on to conclude that the Legislature's enactment of procedural rules specific to the then-pending lawsuit was not within the authority granted the Legislature by art. V § 13 to "regulate by law,

when necessary, the methods of proceeding in the exercise of their powers of all courts below the Supreme Court" ISEEO IV, 140 Idaho at 593, 97 P.3d at 460 (emphasis in original). The ISEEO IV Court concluded that the Legislature's desire "to direct the outcome of a case" seeking to require "the Legislature to fulfill a constitutionally mandated duty" was not "sufficiently necessary so as to justify rewriting the Court's rules of procedure." Id. In short, the ISEEO IV decision applies only to circumstances where the Legislature asserts authority under art. V § 13 to alter court procedures for the purpose of dismissing a pending lawsuit against the State.

Unlike the legislation at issue in *ISEEO IV*, the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act involves the exercise of the Legislature's police power to regulate the use of state property, and nothing in the Act attempts to regulate the courts in the exercise of their powers. The specific provisions of the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act are well within the Legislature's authorities regarding regulation of noise and activities on state property. "By our Constitution the power to make and determine policy for the government of the State is vested in the Legislature, Idaho Const. Art. 2, § 1, and Art. 3, § 1." *Rich v. Williams*, 81 Idaho 311, 325, 341 P.2d 432, 440 (1959)(citations omitted).

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