Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

4-17-2012

Citizens Against Range Expansion v. Idaho Fish and Game Dept Respondent's Brief Dckt. 39297

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

III. ARGUMENT

A. The District Court was correct in concluding noise and other standards adopted by the Idaho Legislature for state outdoor shooting ranges are unconstitutional.

The principal but not the only Idaho constitutional issue is whether the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act, House Bill 515, which became Idaho Code §67-9101, et. seq., is a "local or special law" in violation of Article III, §19, of the Idaho Constitution.

Idaho Constitution Article III, §19 reads in part as follows:

Local and special laws prohibited. The legislature shall not pass local or special laws in any of the following enumerated cases, that is to say: For limitation of civil or criminal actions.

Professor Dennis C. Colson in "Idaho Constitution – The Tie that Binds," University of Idaho Press (1991), gives the Territorial background and the constitution assembly record of the adoption of Article III §19. pp. 202-205. After citing about 20 Supreme Court cases which interpreted that provision, Professor Colson made this comment that directly applies to this case:

These cases are evidence that, just as during territorial days, local interests continue to lobby the state legislature for local legislation. The legislature often cannot resist giving aid, and the litigation that often follows reflects the bitterness caused by the intervention. p. 205

Plaintiffs are indeed very bitter about the action of the Idaho Fish and Game Department (IDFG) in going to the 2008 Legislature to nullify the Court's February 23, 2007 Memorandum Decision, Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order and Judgment that closed the Farragut Shooting Range.

Rather than appeal from that Order, IDFG drafted House Bill 515, went before the house and senate committees without any notice to any one in Bayview (or anywhere else). IDFG gave misleading information in both hearings both verbally and in writing. The bill was directed solely and only at this case. It was not a "local interest" lobbying the state legislature: It was a state agency that had a responsibility to represent and inform the public.

The upside is that Judge Mitchell devoted 36 pages to the constitutional issues in his March 11, 2011 Memorandum Decision and Order on Motions to Strike, Defendant's Motion for View, Defendant's Motion Partial Lifting of Injunction and Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment; and Order Scheduling Court Trial (hereinafter "Memorandum Decision.")

Judge Mitchell was in a unique position to make this thorough analysis. The decision of this Court in Moon v. North Idaho Farmers Association, Inc., 140 Idaho 536, 96 P.3d 637 (2004), the grass field burning case, reversed Judge Mitchell's opinion that Article III §19 had been violated.

This case provides the opportunity for this Court to follow Judge Mitchell's lead in clarifying the application of prohibited local and special laws. Judge Mitchell observed that the *Moon* opinion defined "special" as failing to treat all persons in similar situations alike and that "local" meant not applying equally to all areas of the state. (Memorandum Decision) (R 869-878)

What Judge Mitchell derived from the *Moon* opinion is that the "capricious, unreasonable, arbitrary" test applied to "special laws" but not the "local laws." (Memorandum Decision, p. 38) (R 872)

Article V, §13 in the Idaho Constitution specifically prohibits the legislature from interfering with the courts:

The legislature shall have no power to deprive the judicial department of any power or jurisdiction which rightly pertains to it as a coordinate department of the government.

House Bill 515 is special legislation in violation of the Idaho Constitution. See Concerned Taxpayers of Kootenai County v. Kootenai County, 137 Idaho 196, 50 P.3d 991 (2002). House Bill 515 was "... a special enactment designed only to affect one particular lawsuit ..." in violation of separation of powers. See Idaho Schools of Equal Educational Opportunity v. State of Idaho, 140 Idaho 586, 592, 97 P.3d 453, (2004). (ISEEO v. State of Idaho.)

ISEEO v. State of Idaho, supra, is the near last of ISEEO decisions which the plaintiff school districts won without ever achieving final victory. The ruling of unconstitutionally is a lasting legal legacy. The legislature at the urging of the attorney general enacted a law that sought to negate prior rulings and forestall future adverse decision in a pending case. The Idaho Supreme Court held the legislative action to be a special law in violation of Article III §19.

The Idaho Supreme Court identified the challenged new law in this way:

Particular to these findings is the Legislature's indication that this bill was specifically drafted in response to the ISEEO lawsuit and that the bill was meant to apply to the ISEEO case by "altering the procedure of the existing lawsuit" by changing the language of the Constitutionality Based Educational Claims Act (CBECA) statutes. 140 Idaho at 592.

The only difference here is that the statute in House Bill 515 was new, not an amendment. The conclusion is directly applicable:

From the above it is very clear that though the State asserts on appeal the Legislature intended to create a general law applicable to a wide class of parties, the Legislature was in reality enacting special legislation directed specifically at the ISEEO case and particularly, the Plaintiffs and their cause of action against the Legislature. Though the State argues that HB 403 applies to all school districts equally, the language of the bill plainly states that it is meant to specifically apply to the current litigation. HB403 is aimed at essentially disbanding the ISEEO case and restructuring it in a manner that destroys the Plaintiffs' cause of action against the Legislature. This is a special enactment designed only to affect one particular lawsuit and is clearly a special law in violation of Article III, §19. 140 Idaho at 592.

In ISEEO, the challenged amendment was directed to all school districts equally, most of which were not parties to the lawsuit. Here the statute is directed at all state owned shooting ranges, but there are only four, three of which are so isolated that noise levels have no meaning and two of which are entirely upon open land devoid of any habitation within gun range.

The final conclusion was that the challenged amendment was legislative interference with the judicial department:

Consequently, we find that there is no necessity present pursuant to Article V, §13 of the Idaho Constitution meriting the legislature's attempt to legislate itself out of this lawsuit by rewriting the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure. We also find HB403 to be a special law pertaining to the practice of the courts aimed specifically at this lawsuit and these plaintiffs, and accordingly find that portion of HB403 amending I.C. §6-2215 of the Idaho Code is unconstitutional. 140 Idaho at 593.

Similarly House Bill 515 was aimed specifically at this lawsuit and is in violation of Article V, §13.

In Concerned Taxpayers of Kootenai County v. Kootenai County, supra, plaintiff

challenged a Resort County Local Option Sales and Use Tax which had allowed Kootenai County to impose a one-half percent sales tax to construct a new jail. Idaho Code §63-2601 et. seq. Although the act was broadly written as if to apply all over the state, the population limitation made it applicable only to Kootenai County. The Idaho Supreme Court held that an act that applied to only one place was special legislation:

Kootenai County's asserted justifications for the population requirements are unpersuasive. They do not demonstrate any reasonable basis for preventing other counties that derive a substantial portion of their income from the tourist industry from enjoying the tax-shifting benefit of the Resort County Act. Stated otherwise, the choice to benefit only Kootenai County was unreasonable, arbitrary, and capricious. Regardless of the rationalizations and social policy arguments offered by Kootenai County, one cannot escape the fact that I.C. §63-2602 is directly contrary to the prohibitions contained in Article Ill, §19 of the Idaho Constitution. Because of the definition contained in I.C.§63-602, the Resort County Act fails to treat similarly situated taxpayers similarly, has a specific local application, and is not supported by a rational or reasonable basis. Consequently, we hold that the Resort County Act is an unconstitutional local and special law. 137 Idaho at 501.

The legislative record here even more than in *Concerned Taxpayers* is explicitly aimed only at this Court's ruling at Farragut. The opinion refused to accept the trial court's effort to "amend" the challenged statute to broaden its application:

Additionally, the language of the Resort County Act demonstrates that the legislature was intent on strictly limiting the type of county that may

enact a local sales tax. The population requirements were not included by mistake; rather, they constitute one of the major defining characteristics of the Resort County Act. They are therefore integral or indispensable to the operation of the Act. A removal of those limitations by this Court, while perhaps rendering the Resort County Act constitutional, would be a legislative act. We hold that the population requirements in the Resort County Act are not severable, and the entire Act is unconstitutional. 137 Idaho at 502.

Again, the Idaho Department of Fish and Game in House Bill 515 was using the equivalent of a high powered rifle scope directed almost line by line to nullify the Court's Memorandum Decision in its entirety.

House Bill 515 was not part of a "... larger legislative package ... " where the Idaho Supreme Court finds that "... the state had a legitimate interest ..." so that the Act "... is neither an arbitrary, capricious or unreasonable method for addressing this legitimate societal concern ... " *Kirkland v. Blaine County Medical Center*, 134 Idaho 464,470, 4 P.3d 1115, _____ (2000).

In School District No. 25, Bannock County v. State Tax Commission, 101 Idaho 283, 612 P.2d 126 (1980), the Idaho Supreme Court upheld a statutory scheme for apportioning electric utility property among various taxing districts. The rationale clearly shows the difference between a statutory scheme that applies everywhere and a challenged law which is local and special legislation as here:

A local law is one that is special in the sense of applying to a particular locality or particular localities to the exclusion of others. 2 Sutherland, Statutes and Statutory Construction §40.01 (41h ed. 1973). A

statute is not "local" in operation, so as to render it violative of Art. 3, §19 of the Constitution, when it applies equally to all areas of the state. District Bd. of Health of Public Health District No. 5 v. Chancey, 94 Idaho 944, 500 P.2d 845 (1972). A special law applies only to an individual or number of individuals out of a single class similarly situated and affected or to a special locality. A law is not special simply because it may have only a local application or apply only to a special class if, in fact, it does apply to all such cases and all similar localities and to all belonging to the specified class to which the law is made applicable. (Citations.) A statute is general and not special if its terms apply to and its provisions operate upon all persons and subject matters in like situations. 101 Idaho at 291.

House Bill 515 does not meet any of these cited criteria.

As noted in Judge Mitchell's Memorandum Decision (pp. 17-18), the Idaho Supreme Court in *Jones v. State Board of Medicine*, 97 Idaho 859, 555 P.2d 399 (1976), held the Hospital-Medical Liability Act which immunized physicians and acute care hospitals against malpractice actions over \$150,000 was unconstitutional:

Clearly it is arguable at least that the Act in question here is special in that it selects from a class of persons otherwise subject to liability for their negligent acts, physicians and hospitals, and releases or extinguishes, in part at least, their otherwise liability contrary to the interdiction of special laws in Art. III, §19. 97 Idaho at 877, cited in Moon v. Farmers. 140 Idaho at 546.

In testimony on February 19, 2008 before the House Resources and Conservation

Committee, Sharon Kiefer, Legislative liaison for IDFG, said that House Bill 515 was directly

aimed at "litigation or upon use of the shooting range at Farragut State Park." The legislation could not be more special nor more local. (R 650)

On January 16, 2008 an Idaho Fish and Game commissioner told the same House Committee of planned expansion:

Mr. McDermott said in the past, user days averaged about 2,000 'user days' per year. The Commission would like to increase it to 3,000 and they plan to petition the judge."

House Resources & Conservation Committee – January 16, 2008, Minutes, p. 3. (R823)

It can be argued that the special class of persons referred to in *Jones v. State Board of Medicine* in the 2000 users to be expanded to 3,000. In that case, the Idaho Supreme Court stated the general purpose of Article III, §19:

That provision of the Idaho Constitution was patterned after those which occurred in many state constitutions in the late nineteenth century following a proliferation of special local laws in post Civil War legislatures. Clow & Marcus, "Special and Local Legislation," 24 Ky.Law Journal 351, 355-358 (1936). The general purpose of such constitutional provisions was 'to prevent legislation bestowing favors on preferred groups or localities. State ex rel. Idaho State Park Board v. City of Boise, 95 Idaho 380, 383, 509 P.2d 1301, 1304 (1973). 97 Idaho at 876.

Judge Mitchell found application of the general purpose to this act to be conclusive of being special legislation.

The "general purpose" of Article III, §19 is "to prevent legislation bestowing

favors on preferred groups or localities," then this Court finds without a doubt the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act violates that general purpose. The legislation on its face only inures to the benefit of the State, and the legislative history shows it was designed to inure to the benefit only of IDFG and only (or at least primarily) for this litigation. 2011

Memorandum Decision, pages 54 - 55. (R 888-889)

IDFG argues that the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act protects the public health, safety or morals and is therefore a valid exercise of the police power. Judge Mitchell rejected that claim near the closure of his Memorandum Decision pages 64 to 69. (R 898-903) House Bill 515 worked in the opposite of both public health – by raising the noise level – and safety, - by allowing blue sky, ricochets and excluding legal challenge by the Bayview residents who brought the lawsuit. The degree to which this legislation is contrary to public health and safety and maybe even morals is described by Judge Mitchell at the close of his policy power rebuttal.

In 2008, IDFG told the legislature they want to take that to 3,000 users per year and IDFG told the granting source they want to increase use to 557,112 shooters per year. Essentially, IDFG created the expansion of the range with a grant, the expansion of the range would cause an increase in annual use from 182 shooters per year to an anticipated 557,112 shooters per year, that increased caused concern for the surrounding residents who filed this lawsuit, and IDFG was able to convince the Idaho Legislature that the Idaho Outdoor Sport Shooting Range Act was a good idea. The Act is a way for IDFG to insulate itself from liability for a situation which it, and only it created. That is not a valid use of police power. (Memorandum Decision, pp.

68-69) (R 902-903)

The Court Memorandum Opinion issued February 23, 2007, comes here cloaked with correctness. The findings of fact and conclusions of law made in that decision are likewise binding on the parties.

As to the 2011 rulings, this Court stated... "A trial Court's conclusions following a bench trial will be limited to a determination of whether the evidence supports the trial Court's findings of fact, and whether those findings support the conclusions of law.... This Court will 'liberally construe the trial Court findings of fact in favor of the Judgment entered, as it is within the province of the trial Court to weigh conflicting evidence and testimony and judge the credibility of witnesses'.... This Court will not disturb findings of fact on appeal that is supported by substantial and competent evidence, even if there is conflicting evidence at trial.... This Court has always held that its view of the facts will not be substituted for that of the trial Court." The Watkins Company, LLC v. Michael Storms and Kathy Burggraf, (IDSCCI No. 37685) March 2, 2012, (citations omitted)

In as much as the defendant has not addressed the findings of fact of the trial Court in the Order appealed, we urge this Court to accept the findings of fact and conclusions of law as true.

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